
SOUTH TYNE AND WEAR WASTE MANAGEMENT 
PARTNERSHIP JOINT EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE AGENDA

Friday, 15 June 2018 at 1.30 pm in the Whickham Room - Civic Centre

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey
Item Business

1.  Election of Chair 

2.  Election of Deputy Chairs 

3.  Apologies for Absence 

4.  Minutes (Pages 3 - 12)

The Joint Executive Committee is asked to approve the minutes of its last meeting held 
on 16 March 2018.

5.  Declarations of Interests 

6.  RWTC Contract Performance 

Presentation by Anna Bell, Regional Manager, Suez

7.  Waste Awareness and Recycling Education in South Tyne and Wear 

Presentation by Stephen Armstrong, Rachael Courtney, Groundwork North East and 
Cumbria

8.  Contracts Update (Pages 13 - 24)

Report of Tony Alder, Project Director, South Tyne and Wear Waste Management 
Partnership (attached)

9.  Communications Update 

Presentation

10.  Date and time of next meeting 

The next meeting of the Joint Executive Committee will  be held on Friday 21 September 
2018 at 1.30 pm

Public Document Pack



Contact: Helen Conway Email:Helenconway@gateshead.gov.uk, Tel: 433 3993 , 
Date: Friday, 8 June 2018



GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

SOUTH TYNE AND WEAR WASTE MANAGEMENT PARTNERSHIP JOINT 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

Friday, 16 March 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Linda Green (Gateshead Council) (Chair)

Gateshead Council Councillor Catherine Donovan 

South Tyneside Council Councillor Jim Foreman

Sunderland Council Councillor Michael Mordey

IN ATTENDANCE:

Gateshead Council Anthony Alder, Fiona Swinburne, Gary Smith and Colin 
Huntington

South Tyneside Council Andrew Whittaker

Sunderland Council Colin Curtis

APOLOGIES: Councillor  Angela Douglas
Councillor Graeme Miller, Councillor Allan West, Councillor Melvin 
Speding, Chris Wilson, Mark Speed and Brendan McNeany

1 APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Miller, Councillor West, 
Councillor Douglas, Brendan McNeany and Mark Speed.

2 MINUTES 

The minutes of the meetings held on 22 September 2017 and 8 December 2017 
were agreed as a correct record.
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were submitted.
 

4 WASTE INFRASTRUCTURE DELIVERY PROGRAMME (WIDP) 

The Committee received a presentation on waste policy. It was noted that the 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



existing targets of 50% diversion by 2020 have been reached in 2010-11, therefore 
biodegradable municipal waste (BMW) is not a big issue.  Although recycling rates 
have increased since 2000-2001 there appears to be a national plateau at 44-45%.
 
Previously there has been a heavy reliance on landfill, however this is no longer the 
case. There has been a small increase in incineration but this is due to the new 
technologies in place.
 
In terms of regional recycling rates the East is doing well with just under 50%, the 
North East is currently performing at 35.7%. However, it was pointed out that this is 
not a black and white picture as, in terms of the South Tyne and Wear, very little 
goes to landfill compared to other North East authorities. Newcastle and Darlington 
landfill the most waste in the North East.
 
Defra papers have been published; 25 Year Environmental Plan, EU Circular 
Economy Package and Resource and Waste Strategy, which will be published in 
September / October. All the documents are about the direction of travel of waste 
management in the next 15 years. It was noted that the papers contain a lot of 
aspiration but not a lot of detail.  The 25 Year Environmental Plan sets out the 
ambition to eliminate all avoidable plastic waste by the end of 2042. A number of 
aspirations are outlined such as; the 5p single use bag charge to be extended to 
small businesses on a voluntary basis, plastic free supermarket aisles to be explored 
and developing producer responsibility schemes to incentivise producers to resource 
efficient products. In addition there is an ambition to have no food waste entering 
landfill by 2030.
 
The EU Circular Economy Package outlines targets of 55% recycling rate by 2025, 
60% by 2030 and 65% by 2035. It also states that, by 2035, no more than 10% of 
municipal’s waste should go to landfill. There is also to be a mandatory separate 
collection of bio-waste with effect from December 2023.
 
The Resource and Waste Strategy which is due to be published this year sets out 
how authorities will work towards the ambition of zero avoidable waste by 2050. This 
focuses on moving waste up the hierarchy, targets will be weight based, tax and 
incentives to be outlined as well as infrastructure needs and more enforcement 
power for local authorities.
 
It was noted that there is a gap between what the government expect to receive from 
landfill tax and what is actually paid, therefore this is a loss of income which may 
drive incineration tax to be developed.
 
It was agreed that further information would be brought back to the Committee on 
these issues in the near future.
 
RESOLVED    -        That the Joint Executive Committee noted the information 

presented.
 

Page 4



5 CONTRACTS UPDATE 

The Committee received a report on the current position regarding the Residual 
Waste Treatment Contract and other contracts and activities managed by the 
Partnership.
 
It was reported that production was lost due to blockages in the bottom ash extractor 
and the waste feed chute. Suez has set up a working group to investigate the 
blockages and to identify potential recommendations for improvement. 
 
Health and Safety officers from the partner authorities visited the EfW facility in 
November to undertake a review of protocols, procedures and reporting systems.
 
It was reported that the main 2018 EfW shutdown will take place of line 4 from 27 
February until 22 March and line 5 from 19 February until 7 March.
 
It was noted that the 2018/19 Annual Unitary Charge Forecast (AUCF) is nearing 
completion, this will form the basis of what each partner will pay for each month. The 
final reconciliation payment at the end of the financial year will be a one-off payment 
to establish the difference paid on the AUCF estimates and the actuals observed.
 
The exercise to investigate the potential opportunity to refinance the debt associated 
with the residual waste treatment contract is progressing. A joint insurance cost 
review is also ongoing, it was noted that the partnership is leading the exercise on 
behalf of the sector as this is an issue across the whole sector.
 
Committee was advised that STWWMP has been shortlisted at the LGC Awards 
2018 for its WEEE Reduce, Reuse and Recycle project, under the Public/Private 
Partnership category. Winners will be revealed at the awards evening on 21 March 
2018.  Following a successful application for external funding to deliver another 
WEEE project, a project officer has been appointed.
 
In terms of the MRF contracts it was reported that the amount collected has 
increased overall in Sunderland, which is due to the introduction of fortnightly 
collections from April 2017.
 
The MRF contracts are due to end on 31 March 2018 for all partner authorities, 
however it has been agreed to activate the contract extension periods until 31 March 
2021. This will allow a joint approach between all partner authorities for a new 
contract commencing 1 April 2021.
 
RESOLVED    -        That the Joint Executive Committee noted the contents of the 

report.
 

6 QUALIFYING REFINANCING EXERCISE 

Committee received a report on the progress of the Residual Waste Treatment 
Contract refinancing exercise.
 

Page 5



The STWWMP signed a £727m 25 year contract to provide waste treatment and 
disposal. £73.525m of PFI credits were secured to support the investment. 
Refinancing is permitted under the contract and South Tyne and Wear Energy 
Recovery (STWER) approached the STWWMP in 2017 because it had identified an 
opportunity to renegotiate the Contract. Due to issues with the turbine the 
refinancing exercise was postponed until now. 
 
The refinancing exercise has resumed and discussions have commenced with 
STWER and their lenders as well as Pinsent Masons LLP as the financial and legal 
advisors for STWWMP.
 
It was noted that Defra is involved to ensure there continues to be no impact on the 
PFI credits. Any benefits of the re-financing exercise are to be shared between the 
Partnership and STWER, calculated by the impact of the exercise on the Net 
Present Value of the projected distributions over the term of the contract.  The 
Partnership would benefit from 50% of a re-financing gain of up to £1m, 60% of up to 
£3m and 70% of a gain exceeding £3m.  The re-financing gain can be paid through 
a single payment, a reduction in the unitary charge payment or a combination of 
both.
 
It was confirmed that the exercise will take up to 12 months but that it is hoped to be 
complete within 2018.  
 
RESOLVED    -           (i)        That the Joint Executive Committee noted the 

contents of the report and agreed to the progression of 
the exercise to release the financial benefits.

 
                                    (ii)        That the Joint Executive Committee agreed to receive 

     further updates during the exercise.
 

7 JOINT MUNICIPAL WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2018-2022 

A report was presented on the progress of the five-year review of the Joint Municipal 
Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS). The strategy was initially agreed by each 
partner authority in 2007, and covers the management of municipal waste for 20 
years, until 2027. 
 
At the time of implementing the strategy it was agreed that a review be carried out 
every five years. This is the first review since service commencement of the RWTC.
 
Successes over the last five years were identified, including; no landfill since April 
2015, increased community engagement following establishing the Visitor and 
Education Centre and joint procurement exercises leading to financial savings.
 
In 2013 the refresh of the JMWMS contained objectives which were too aspirational 
in times of austerity. However, key service options remain on the radar for future 
work.
 
Future key challenges were acknowledged such as Brexit, austerity and National 

Page 6



Sword operation in China.
 
It was proposed to retain the original 20 year timeline to allow partner authorities to 
focus on the strategic aims and aspirations of the partnership rather than identifying 
specific actions within the JMWMS.  The full strategy will be brought to the next 
meeting.
 
RESOLVED    -        That the Joint Executive Committee noted the contents of the 

report.
 

8 HWRC VEHICLE PERMIT SCHEME REVIEW 

It was reported that over the last few months the Partnership team has been leading 
an evaluation of the Household Waste and Recycling Centre (HWRC) vehicle permit 
schemes in order to harmonise site access arrangements across the partnership 
area.
 
There are four HWRC’s across the partnership area, each of which is managed on 
behalf of the partnership by external contractors. The sites are made up of a number 
of different skips for different materials, they are open seven days per week except 
Christmas.  HWRC’s can be used by any resident of the same local authority area, 
as there is no pedestrian access a vehicle must be used to dispose of any waste. 
 
Previously vehicle permit schemes were introduced to restrict opportunities for 
inappropriate and potentially illegal access for the disposal of non-household waste 
or very large volumes of waste. Those residents using cars with trailers, vans, 
vehicles with a flat bed loading space of 4x4 vehicles with solid rear panels, must 
apply for a permit for their specific vehicle in order to gain access to the site. 
Vehicles such as live agricultural vehicles, vans with trailers and box vans are 
banned from sites due to their size and the type of waste they would likely be 
transporting. Across the partnership the vehicle permit schemes have basically 
corresponding criteria except some minor inconsistencies around vehicle height, 
length and weight.
 
It was noted that HWRC’s are only licensed to accept household waste, commercial 
waste cannot be disposed of as it needs to be managed within the correct legal 
framework. In Gateshead and Sunderland vehicle length was selected as a key 
restriction due to health and safety issues and traffic movement, as well as the 
suspected misuse of HWRC’s by traders and commercial businesses. However it 
was reported that there has been an increase in complaints regarding site access 
restrictions, this is because many of the new style pick-ups are as common as 
everyday estate cars but are often over the five metre maximum length limit and 
therefore are not allowed to access sites. In South Tyneside instead of vehicle 
length restriction, vans and larger vehicles are subject to a maximum gross vehicle 
weight limit of three and a half tonnes. It was pointed out however that this is difficult 
to enforce and essentially allows any type of van, regardless of their size, to enter 
the site.
 
In terms of the 2016/17 permit scheme statistics only 158 applications were refused 

Page 7



in Gateshead; 25% of which was because they were identified as trade waste and 
69% because the vehicle was over 5 metres long. 1,233 were refused in South 
Tyneside, 53% of these were because too many permits had already been issued 
that month, 43% because the vehicle had previously been used by another resident 
and 5% because they were suspected trade waste.  In Sunderland the number of 
permits refused was 346, 66% because they were trade waste, 24% because the 
vehicle was over 5 metres and 7% because excessive amounts of waste were trying 
to be disposed.  It was acknowledged that these figures do not include telephone 
applications where, once a restriction is breached, the application process is 
terminated immediately and the details are not recorded.  It was also reported that 
generally residents apply for more permits than they actually need. For example, in 
Gateshead, 18,499 permits were issued online but only 7,976 were presented at an 
HWRC, similarly 3,207 permits were posted but only 1,186 were used. 442 permits 
were printed by the Council for collection from the Civic Centre and only 205 were 
used. It was noted that in Sunderland only 60% of the permits issued were 
presented on site.  Issuing more permits than are needed costs the Councils more in 
administering the permit scheme.
 
In reviewing the existing vehicle permit schemes gives an opportunity to harmonise 
access arrangements and maximise the benefits of using HWRC’s for as many 
residents as possible, whilst ensuring that trade users’ access to sites is restricted. 
This will also support the joint approach to the procurement of a new partnership 
wide HWRC contract in 2020.
 
The review recommended two changes to the existing HWRC vehicle permit 
schemes; the first being the introduction of a maximum annual limit of 12 permits per 
year (most other local authorities already restrict the number of permits). The 
statistics show that it would seem reasonable to implement and would only impact 
on a relatively small number of genuine service users and will significantly restrict 
commercial users disposing of their trade waste free of charge.  The restriction will 
also encourage service users to only apply for the number of permits they actually 
need. Any unused permits will not be able to be carried forward to the next year. It 
was acknowledged that there are still some issues to be ironed out to ensure 
effective operation, for example customer services will need to cross-reference the 
named resident against the vehicle and the household from which the application is 
being made, this is to ensure traders are not asking others to apply for permits on 
their behalf. Consideration is also being given to whether all 12 permits should be 
issued in a single application and whether the annual period should relate to a 
calendar / financial year or a 12 month period from the date of application.
 
It was noted that the review also proposes to increase vehicle length limit across the 
partnership to a maximum of 5.5 metres. This will mean only minor changes will be 
needed to the Gateshead and Sunderland HWRC services, although South 
Tyneside will be changing from vehicle weight to vehicle length, which will mean 
some vehicles currently able to apply for a permit will be prevented from continuing 
to do so.
 
It was confirmed that any actual costs savings are too difficult to quantify as there is 
no direct tonnage information available to analyse the exact amount of trade waste 
that is being disposed of.  It was reported that the review of the vehicle permit 

Page 8



scheme will ultimately restrict commercial users from disposing of trade waste 
illegally at the Council’s expense and this will therefore improve the service for 
genuine service users by reducing queuing traffic and shortening the time that 
people are spending on site.
 
During the review discussions were held with Suez as the HWRC provider for 
Gateshead and Sunderland, as South Tyneside’s provider changed during the 
review to Remondis JBT discussions around the service change will need to be held. 
The two current proposals are considered as ‘quick wins’ in terms of the HWRC 
service but they do require significant back office work by colleagues outside of the 
partnership team, for example customer service front line staff and the software that 
manages online applications. It was noted that this will need to be underpinned by a 
coordinated communications campaign across the partnership area in advance of 
the introduction of the changes.
 
RESOLVED    -        That Joint Executive Committee noted the information 

presented.
  

9 COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE 

A presentation was given to the Committee on waste-related stories that have 
recently been in the media.
 
It was reported that the fallout from the Chinese recycling import restrictions 
continues. Resource Minister Therese Coffey stated that the ban gives us an 
opportunity to reprocess more here instead of exporting it to the other side of the 
world. However, these comments have been criticised by the Environmental Audit 
Committee and compliance specialists Ecosurety who have stated that the UK is 
nowhere near ready to create the number of recycling plants that will be required if 
all plastic waste is to be recycled on home soil.  They have stated that the country 
will therefore need to continue to export plastic waste overseas or incinerate it for 
the near to medium future while the recycling capacity in the UK is built up. Also in 
that time the Government will need to inject financial and market incentives for those 
companies that want to invest in plastic reprocessing. Ecosurety has also said that 
UK householders will have to become better at sorting plastic for recycling to ensure 
recyclers receive the right quality of plastic materials. It therefore called on 
Government to ensure a uniform domestic recycling system is introduced across the 
UK backed up by a campaign to educate households about how to recycle their 
plastic waste properly.
 
The paper recycling company Mid UK Recycling Ltd has stated that the issue with 
China is overshadowing another crisis in the industry; that of paper and cardboard. It 
has been suggested that packaging is becoming more difficult to recycle as 
cardboard boxes often contain metal staples, plastic parcel tape and amazon parcel 
stickers. This means that the Chinese maximum 0.5% contamination rate is barely 
achievable. Also, European mills are full with high stock levels, which is worse for 
the UK as they are battling against the UK winter to control moisture levels within 
storage facilities whilst facing increasing restrictions following the Environment 
Agency fire prevention plan guidance coming into play.

Page 9



 
It was noted that EU ambassadors have endorse the provisional agreement on the 
legislative proposals of the waste package that was reached with the European 
Parliament last year, with an increase in recycling targets for all member states. The 
proposals will set the following targets for the preparation for reuse and recycling of 
municipal waste by weight;

         55% by 2025
         60% by 2030
         65% by 2035

 
Committee was advised that Michael Gove remains as the Environment Secretary 
and Therese Coffey kept her post as Resource Minister for a second year. The 
SUEZ Chief Executive said it was reassuring to have stability in the leadership of the 
department and that consistency at Defra is crucial if the UK wants to stand any 
chance of being a future leader in resource efficiency, sustainability and 
environmental protection.
 
It was reported that the Government’s delayed 25-year Environment Plan was 
published in January, it includes pledges to support ‘comprehensive and frequent 
waste and recycling collections which protect local amenities and ensure that 
products are recycled as much as possible, returning high quality materials back into 
the economy. Its initial waste-related focus will be on plastics, some of the other 
proposals include urging supermarkets to create plastic free aisles, charging for 
single use plastic items and extending the plastic bag levy to smaller retailers.  It 
was noted that delivery of the Plan will link to the Resources and Waste Strategy 
which is expected to provide more detail on the funding of services to increase 
recycling levels. Although it was confirmed that the strategy is not likely to be 
published until the second half of 2018 as Defra needed to consider the proposed 
call for evidence on how the tax system or charges could help reduce the amount of 
single use plastic waste, and there would have to be consultation on elements of the 
strategy because it would propose regulatory changes.
 
It was also reported that Asda has become the first of the ‘big four’ supermarkets to 
set out detailed plans about how it will reduce its use of plastic. Asda has pledged to 
‘use less and recycle more’ by reducing the amount of plastic in its own-brand 
packaging by 10% by the end of the year and work with suppliers to investigate new 
options to replace plastic packaging or identify more recyclable solutions.  Asda will 
also remove all single use cups and plastic cutlery from its cafes by the end of 2019 
and will replace single use carrier bags with bags for life by the end of 2018.  In 
addition, Waitrose has announce it will remove black plastic trays from meat, fish, 
fruit and vegetables by the end of 2018 and will stop selling packs of disposable 
straws from September. Waitrose has also stopped selling items containing 
microbeads and switched to paper-stem cotton buds and are committed to making it 
own-label packaging widely recyclable, reusable or home compostable by 2025.  
The retailer Iceland committed to eliminate plastic packaging from all of its own 
brand products by the end of 2023 by harnessing the latest technologies to create 
packaging using paper.
 
Starbucks launched a 5p coffee cup trial across 35 stores in London to assess 
whether customers reduce their use of single-use paper cups because of the 

Page 10



additional charge. The proceeds generated will be donated to environmental 
regeneration charity and behavioural change experts Hubbub. Starbucks has also 
commissioned research which found that 48% of respondents said they would carry 
a reusable cup to save money and reduce waste.
 
Committee was advised that the London Borough of Newham has said its expensive 
and inflexible PFI deal is preventing it from improving its household recycling rate, 
which is currently the lowest in England at 14.1%. Newham is part of the East 
London Waste Authority which has a 25 year PFI contract to collect and dispose of 
121,000 tonnes of waste a year. The PFI contract and Government funding cuts 
have been blamed for the authority being unable to boost its recycling rate. The 
Mayor of Newham stated that the PFI contract restricts waste materials from being 
collected separately, that the overall cost of the waste levy was one of the highest in 
the country and that there is a lack of financial incentives for the Council to invest in 
achieving higher recycling rates. The Mayor also stated that the Council is now 
caught in an expensive PFI where they lack choice, flexibility and saving 
opportunities through recycling solutions that many other authorities are able to 
exercise.
 
It was also noted that Brighton and Hove City Council has blamed an inflexible PFI 
deal for restricting recycling, saying that its PFI contractor, Veolia, only recycled 
those materials where there is a guaranteed end market. Veolia are not willing to 
change their position and the Council is contractually obliged under the terms of their 
PFI agreement to provide all waste materials, whether residual or recyclable, to the 
contractor.  The former Head of Waste at the Department of the Environment has 
highlighted that the East London Waste Authority was one of the early PFI’s which 
was conceived when recycling targets were lower and the focus was on reducing 
biodegradable waste to landfill. Therefore such contracts have little flexibility to 
adjust to the changing legislative and market conditions or to adapt to consumer 
behaviour.
 
Committee was advised that Conwy County Borough Council has delayed the roll-
out of four weekly residual household waste collections after hearing that residents 
were having problems with recycling. A motion was passed to ask Cabinet to 
reconsider their resolution and ensure they were wholly satisfied that all education 
and communication mitigation measures raised at the meeting were in place.
 
RESOLVED    -        That the Joint Executive Committee noted the information 

presented.
 

10 DATE AND TIME OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

RESOLVED    -        That the Joint Executive Committee agreed to the following 
schedule of meetings for 2018/19;
 

         15 June 2018 – 1.30pm
         21 September 2018 – 1.30pm
         7 December 2018 – 1.30pm
         15 March 2019 – 1.30pm

Page 11



Page 12



                               
REPORT TO THE SOUTH TYNE AND WEAR WASTE MANAGEMENT 
PARTNERSHIP JOINT EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

15 June 2018

REPORT OF: Tony Alder, Project Director, South Tyne and Wear Waste Management 
Partnership

SUBJECT:       Contracts Update

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To advise the Joint Executive Committee of the latest position regarding the 
Residual Waste Treatment Contract and other ancillary waste joint contracts 
and activities managed by the South Tyne and Wear Waste Management 
Partnership (STWWMP).

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 The Residual Waste Treatment Contract (RWTC) was awarded to a consortium 
led by SITA UK (through SITA South Tyne and Wear Ltd) on 20 April 2011.  
The contract comprises the energy-from-waste facility (EfW) at Teesside, fed by 
waste from three Waste Transfer Stations (WTS) situated for use by each of the 
partner authorities.  The contract commenced service on 22 April 2014.

2.2 In March 2015, SITA UK’s parent company announced a global rebrand, 
indicating that all of its subsidiary companies would change their names to 
SUEZ.  In December 2015, STWWMP received formal notification that SITA 
South Tyne and Wear Ltd had also changed its name, and would now be known 
as South Tyne and Wear Energy Recovery Ltd (STWER).  

2.3 Gateshead and South Tyneside Councils’ 48-month Materials Recovery Facility 
(MRF) contract for dry recyclables commenced service with Palm Recycling Ltd 
on 1 April 2014.  A contract extension period was activated in 2018, which is 
scheduled to end on 31 March 2021.

2.4 Sunderland Council awarded a separate MRF contract to J&B Recycling, which 
commenced service on 1 April 2015 for a period of 36 months.  A contract 
extension period was activated in 2018, and also is scheduled to end on 31 
March 2021.

   

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



2.5 Gateshead and Sunderland councils jointly procured separate contracts for the 
management of their Household Waste and Recycling Centres (HWRC) with 
SUEZ.  Both incentive-based contracts were two years and seven months in 
length, and commenced service at the beginning of September 2014.  36-month 
contract extension periods were activated from 1 April 2017. 

2.6 From 1 December 2017, South Tyneside Council entered into a 30-month 
HWRC management with Remondis JBT.

2.7 The end dates for all three HWRC management contracts are co-terminus.   
This will enable a joint approach between all three partner authorities to be 
considered for a new contact commencing on 1 April 2020.

2.8 A joint procurement exercise awarded three separate green waste composting 
contracts for each partner authority.  Although contracts were awarded to three 
different providers, the timing of the contract lengths has been structured to 
enable a joint partnership contract to be considered at the end of the current 
arrangements.  The current contract providers are:

 Gateshead:  A.Willey for 36 months from 01 April 2016
 South Tyneside: SUEZ for 36 months from 01 April 2016
 Sunderland: JBT (now delivered by Remondis following take-over of 

JBT) for 31 months from 01 September 2016

2.9 The joint partnership team continues to undertake strategic waste management 
functions on behalf of the partner authorities.  This is enabling, amongst other 
things, a proactive and timely approach to management of the RWTC which is 
operated under strict timescales.  Similar benefits are also afforded to the 
procurement and management of other ancillary contracts, such as MRF, 
HWRC, and green waste composting.

3. RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT CONTRACT 

3.1 The joint partnership team continues to review and verify monthly reports 
received from SUEZ, which detail materials processed and service issues.  
Once approved, invoices are processed and apportioned to the partner 
authorities within contractual timescales.  

2017/18 Service Update
3.2 The year-end performance information for the 2017/18 contract year can be 

found at Appendix A.  Once again, RWTC contractual targets were exceeded.

3.3 The main 2018 EfW maintenance shutdown took place during February and 
March (Line 5 was brought offline 10 hours earlier than scheduled due to a 
bottom ash chute blockage), and the site continued to accept STWWMP waste 
throughout the shutdown period.  However, RWTC contingency arrangements 
were successfully implemented when a small amount of waste received from 
Campground and Jack Crawford House was diverted to the Wilton EfW.

3.4 Maintenance undertaken during the shutdown included the replacement and 
installation of the superheater.  

Page 14



3.5 The turbine was also brought offline on 27 February for annual maintenance 
and inspections.

3.6 A number of service issues have also been experienced, including:

 12 hours of plant availability was lost on 4 February due to a bottom ash 
chute blockage.

 A further 2 hours of plant operation were lost on 16 February because of 
several plant trips that occurred during online boiler cleaning, which 
resulted in a half hourly volatile organic compound (VOC) breach.  The 
issue has been fully investigated and reported to the Environment 
Agency (EA) and a response in terms of a compliance classification 
scheme (CCS) score is still awaited.  A dust breach was also recorded 
during the incident, but following investigation, it was proved as a 
miscalculated and subsequently false reading, and reported to the EA as 
abnormal operation under a Part C notification.

 In March, a large leak on the main condensate line resulted in 30 hours 
of lost production for Line 4 and 35 hours on Line 5.  The fault was 
successfully repaired.

3.7 The extreme snowy and icy weather conditions that were experienced in March 
were challenging for the delivery of all collection services and resulted in 
unpredictable waste flows early in the month.

2018/19 Service Update
3.8 Both Lines 4 & 5 have now had ‘rams’ fitted to assist with blockage clearance 

and help to reduce EfW downtime, as highlighted above. This upgrade is to be 
formally documented and new plans are to be submitted by STWER in the near 
future.

3.9 Service issues experienced in April include:

 Line 5 lost 23.4 hours availability over 1 & 2 April due to a gasket failure 
on a condensate delivery pipeline.  This also resulted in the turbine 
generator unit being offline for 26 hours.

 Line 4 lost 2 hours of availability on 19 April as a consequence of a plant 
trip which was initiated by the failure of the waste feed chute level sensor 
causing the water level in the chute to drop to a low level.  This also 
resulted in a daily exceedance of carbon monoxide (CO) and another half 
hourly VOC breach.  The issue was reported to the EA and a full 
investigation has been conducted.  A CCS score is pending.

Qualifying Refinancing Exercise
3.10 The exercise to investigate the potential opportunity to refinance the debt 

associated with the RWTC continues to progress.  

Joint Insurance Cost Review (JICR)
3.11 Further discussions with representatives from the Department for Environment 

Food and Rural Affairs (Defra), STWER, and Willis Towers Watson insurers 
involving the joint insurance cost report associated with the RWTC are ongoing.  

Page 15



Waste Transfer Stations (WTS)
3.12 All three of the WTS have remained available throughout the current contract 

year, with all sites continuing to accept STWWMP contract waste without 
significant issues.  Recycling activities are ongoing at each site, which includes 
the segregation of materials, such as street sweepings, wood, and scrap 
metals.  

3.13 Routine maintenance of buildings, plant, and control systems continues to be 
delivered as planned and no significant issues have been identified.

3.14 The EA undertook a full site inspection of Middlefields WTS in April to assess 
permit compliance.  At the end of each year, inspected sites are awarded a 
compliance rating from Band A-F (with A being better performing than F).  The 
EA noted that the site is operating well with zero CCS points accrued in the 
compliance year and, therefore, awarded the site a score of A.  

Targeted Recruitment and Training (TR&T)
3.15 The RWTC affords provision for SUEZ to help to improve local prosperity 

across the partnership area by promoting vacant posts within their facilities.  
The Economic Development Service at Gateshead Council continues to receive 
information on local vacancies, which are then cascaded to partner authorities 
for circulation to their client base.  Local vacancies are also raised with the Jack 
Crawford House Community Liaison Group, with the group’s Chair circulating 
opportunities to community contacts across Sunderland.  

3.16 Currently, 71% of staff employed on the residual waste treatment contract at the 
STWWMP waste transfer stations and contract support team are residents of 
the partnership area.  7.5% of those employed at Lines 4 & 5 are Gateshead, 
South Tyneside, or Sunderland residents.

3.17 Following recent staff reorganisation within SUEZ, recent recruitment exercises 
have appointed Gateshead resident as a site supervisor on a 12-month 
secondment at Middlefields; a replacement site operative at Jack Crawford 
House; and an interim appointment in the role of maintenance manager at the 
EfW. 

Community Education and Engagement
3.18 STWWMP remains committed to an ongoing programme of community 

education and engagement, managed by Groundwork North East & Cumbria 
(GNEC) at the visitor and education centre, the energy-from-waste facility, and 
through outreach activities held in local schools and community settings.

3.19 During the financial year 2017/18, 5,395 local children and young people, 
residents, and community group members took part in waste awareness 
activities and site visits.  In recent months, significant events have included: 

 A whole school waste awareness assembly with 200 pupils at Stanhope 
Primary School, South Tyneside.

 A whole school waste awareness assembly and Year 3 waste awareness 
session with a total of 210 pupils at Holley Park Academy, Sunderland.

 A whole school waste awareness assembly and Year 2 waste awareness 
workshop with a total of 224 pupils at Ridgeway Primary Academy, South 
Tyneside.

Page 16



 The launch of the Washington Clean and Green inter-schools recycling 
project at Barmston Village Primary School.

3.20 Since April 2018, events have included:

 An EfW tour for Year 5 pupils from St. Paul’s Primary School, 
Sunderland.

 A whole school waste awareness assembly for 148 pupils at Wessington 
Primary School, Sunderland.

 A whole school waste awareness assembly for 125 pupils at Fell Dyke 
Primary School, Gateshead.

3.21 Following the recent launch events for the dedicated Waste Electrical and 
Electronic Equipment (WEEE) project, an events programme including WEEE 
swap shops and WEEE amnesties continues to be delivered with local schools 
and community groups. 

Community Liaison Groups
3.22 The Jack Crawford House Community Liaison Group met on 22 March 2018.

3.23 The group noted that STWWMP continues to divert 100% of its residual waste 
from landfill, with approximately 96% processed (recovered) through the EfW 
and 4% recycled.  No significant accidents or incidents had occurred on site 
during the period since the group last met.

3.24 A statement from the EA noted that the most recent inspection found the Jack 
Crawford House site to be fully compliant with the permit, with no amenity 
issues evident or permit breaches observed.  No incidents have been reported 
in relation to the waste transfer station or other issues within the local 
community.

3.25 The next meeting of the Jack Crawford House Community Liaison Group was 
scheduled for Thursday 5 July 2018.

3.26 The Campground Community Liaison Group meeting scheduled for 8 May 2018 
was postponed, and is currently being rescheduled.

4. MATERIALS RECOVERY FACILITY (MRF) CONTRACTS

4.1 The MRF contracts continue to be monitored closely by the joint partnership 
team.  This includes processing payments, holding regular contract meetings 
and performance reviews, and Health & Safety site inspections at the various 
contractor facilities to ensure that recycling performance is maximised.  

4.2 Regular discussions at MRF contract management meetings consider ways in 
which recycling quality and performance can be improved in order to increase 
the amount of material recycled and reduce the amount sent for energy 
recovery.  This continues to be an important factor due to the Chinese import 
restrictions on recycling which are impacting on world markets for recycling 
materials.  Currently, these restrictions have had limited impact on the 

Page 17



marketing of the materials from the partnership’s MRF contractors as they are 
either of acceptable quality or alternative destinations have been secured.  
However, the contractors are now looking at what changes can be made to their 
own processes to ensure that recycling levels are maintained. 

4.1 Table A, at Appendix B, highlights the total amount of materials collected by 
each authority during 2017/18, broken down between the paper collected 
separately in the inner box and the comingled materials collected in the main 
section of the blue bin.  In Gateshead and South Tyneside, overall recycling 
tonnages have dropped compared to the previous year. There has been an 
increase in the amount of comingled recycling collected in Sunderland, which 
can be attributed to the introduction of fortnightly refuse collections in April 
2017. However, paper tonnages continue to reduce year on year for all three 
partner authorities.  Table B highlights the blue bin data for April 2018.

4.2 Appendix B also shows Table C, which highlights the 2017/18 year-end MRF 
recycling and recovery rates for comingled materials only.  Recycling 
performance has generally remained at the same level in each partner authority 
throughout the year.  Sunderland City Council continue to identify actions to 
help increase their recycling rates.

5. HOUSEHOLD WASTE AND RECYCLING CENTRE CONTRACTS

5.1 Table A, Appendix C, shows the 2017/18 year-end performance information.  
Table B highlights the latest HWRC recycling figures available (April 2018 only).

5.2 Beach street recycling performance has reduced as a result of the introduction 
of fortnightly refuse collections in Sunderland in April 2017. This has resulted in 
more residents taking their residual waste to the HWRC which cannot be 
recycled. This has also impacted on the Campground performance as 
Sunderland residents use this site.

6. GREEN WASTE COMPOSTING CONTRACTS

6.1 All three partner authorities recommenced garden waste kerbside collection 
services in March/April 2018. Contract meetings have been held with service 
providers at the various facilities which also includes health & safety site 
inspections.

6.2 There has been a recent issue with the quality of garden waste on the 
Gateshead contract highlighted by the contractor. This is due to contamination 
from the HWRC sites in Gateshead and not from kerbside collections. The 
Partnership have been liaising with Suez to ensure quality of garden waste 
collected from the HWRCs improves.

Page 18



7. RECOMMENDATION

7.1 The Joint Executive Committee is requested to note the contents of this report.

Contacts: 
Chris Wilson, Contract Manager (Policy), STWWMP Tel: 433 7478
Fiona Swinburne, Contract Manager (PFI), STWWMP Tel: 433 7428
Gary Smith, Contract Manager (Ancillary), STWWMP Tel: 433 7480

Page 19



APPENDIX A

RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT CONTRACT 

2017/18 year-end performance

Total contract waste 190,141.07 tonnes

Contract waste delivered to WTS:
- Campground Gateshead 58,660.53 tonnes

Sunderland 17,407.30 tonnes
- Middlefields      South Tyneside 49,886.82 tonnes
- Jack Crawford House Sunderland 64,186.42 tonnes

Total contract waste delivered to 
EfW

184,707.82 tonnes

Line 4 availability
Line 5 availability
Overall EfW availability

90.13%
93.56%
91.85%

Average turbine availability 96.82%

Electricity generated
Electricity exported
Electricity imported

190,820 MWh
169,003 MWh
15,073 MWh

Recycling performance Target 2.1%
Performance 4.1%

Recovery performance Target 95.5%
Performance 95.9%

Unprocessed landfill diversion rate 100%

Health and safety:
- RIDDOR 
- Injuries and accidents

0
11

- Near misses
- Property damage

108
41

- Fires 0

Page 20



2018/19 latest performance: April 2018 only

Total contract waste 15,931.79 tonnes

Contract waste delivered to WTS:
- Campground Gateshead 4,930.98 tonnes

Sunderland 1,462.61 tonnes
- Middlefields      South Tyneside 4,207.30 tonnes
- Jack Crawford House Sunderland 5,330.90 tonnes

Total contract waste delivered to 
EfW

15,400.24 tonnes

Line 4 availability
Line 5 availability
Overall EfW availability

99.72%
96.75%
98.24%

Average turbine availability 96.4%

Electricity generated
Electricity exported
Electricity imported

16,677 MWh
14,929 MWh

0 MWh

Recycling performance Target 2.1%
Performance 3.6%

Recovery performance Target 95.5%
Performance 95.4%

Unprocessed landfill diversion rate 100%

Health and safety:
- RIDDOR 
- Injuries and accidents

0
0

- Near misses
- Property damage

7
4

- Fires 0

Page 21



APPENDIX B

MATERIALS RECOVERY FACILITY CONTRACTS

Table A: 2017/18 year-end blue bin tonnage data 

Table B: 2018/19 latest blue bin tonnage data: April 2018 only

Table C: 2017/18 MRF recycling and recovery performance

Gateshead South Tyneside SunderlandPeriod Recycling Recovery Recycling Recovery Recycling Recovery
Q1 2017/18 89.8% 10.2% 84.9% 15.1% 73.4% 26.6%
Q2 2017/18 88.1% 11.9% 84.2% 15.8% 75.6% 24.4%
Q3 2017/18 88.6% 11.4% 85.7% 14.3% 76.4% 23.6%
Q4 2018/17 88.0% 12.0% 82.3% 17.7% 75.3% 24.7%

Gateshead South 
Tyneside

Sunderland

Comingled tonnage 12,757 9,516 18,137
Paper tonnage 2,542 1,700 2,177
Total tonnage 15,299 11,216 20,314
Comparison to 2016/17
- comingled 0.4% decrease 5.9% decrease 16.6% increase

Comparison to   2016/17 
 - paper 13.2% decrease 8.8% decrease 32.9% decrease

Comparison to 2016/17
- all materials 2.8% decrease 6.4% decrease 8.1% increase

Gateshead South 
Tyneside

Sunderland

Comingled tonnage 1,045 765 1,458
Paper tonnage 180 124 143
Total tonnage 1,225 889 1,601
Comparison to April 2017
-  comingled 7.3% increase No change 13.0% increase

Comparison to April 2017 
 - paper 12.2% decrease 1.2% decrease 26.6% decrease

Comparison to April 2017
- all materials 3.9% increase 0.2% decrease 7.8% increase

Page 22



APPENDIX C

HOUSEHOLD WASTE AND RECYCLING CENTRE CONTRACTS

Table A: 2017/18 year-end recycling performance (excluding inert materials, such as 
rubble):

HWRC 2016/17 2017/18
Campground 65.6% 61.4%
Cowen Road 63.2% 63.4%
Beach Street 65.9% 58.8%
Middlefields (Recycling Village) 51.0% 50.8%

Table B: 2018/19 latest recycling performance (excluding inert materials, such as 
rubble):

HWRC April 2018 only
Campground 60.8%
Cowen Road 61.6%
Beach Street 57.4%
Middlefields (Recycling Village) TBC

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	8 Contracts Update

